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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the ‘Holding Company™) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31
March 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income),
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial
statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on
the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries as were
audited by the other auditors, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required
by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group,
as at 31 March 2021, of its consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in
equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant
provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of audit reports
of the other auditors referred to in sub paragraph (a) of the “Other Matters” paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Other Information

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the holding Company’s Annual report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have perforined and based on the work done/ audit report of other auditors,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

‘We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true
and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit and- other comprehensive mcome,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Management and Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company. and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have
been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of each company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls based on our audit.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of
accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial information of such
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For
the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this
regard are further described in para (a) of the section titled ‘Other Matters” in this audit report.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of audit reports of the other
auditors referred to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

A
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Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of two subsidiaries, whose financial
statements/financial information reflect total assets of Rs. 166.68 million- as at 31 March 2021, total
revenues of Rs. 155.90 million and net cash flows amounting to Rs 4.78 million for the year ended on

th

at date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements/financial

information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of
Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the audit
reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work
done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our andit and on the consideration of reports of the

a)

b)

c)

d)

other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries as were audited by other auditors,
as noted in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and the reports of the other auditors.

The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on
31 March 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the report of
the statutory auditor of its subsidiary company, incorporated in India, none of the directors of the
Group company, incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from being appointed as
a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Holding Company, and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure A”. The subsidiary company incorporated in India is exempted from the requirement

o
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of reporting on internal financial controls with reference to financial statements (clause (i) of Section
143(3)).

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other
auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph:

L.

il

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March
2021 on the consolidated financial position of the Group, Refer Note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group, did not have any material foresecable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2021,

iii. There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

iv.

Protection Fund by the Holding Company or its subsidiary company incorporated in India during
the year ended 31 March 2021.

The disclosures in the consolidated financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in
specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not
been made in the financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31
March 2021.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on report of
statutory auditor of subsidiary company incorporated in India which was not audited by us, the
provision of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the Company and its subsidiary Company as
both of them are private companies. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details
under Section 197 (16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 101248W/W 100022

bk Sk

Ankush Goel
Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No.:505121
Date: 17 November 2021 ICAI UDIN : 21505121AAAACW1909
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ report on the consolidated financial statements of SGS
Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid comsolidated financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph (A) (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended 31 March 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding
Company™) as of that date.

In our opinion, the Holding Company, has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of such
internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Holding Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on the
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013
(hereinafter referred to as “the Act™).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing

fo
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the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of the internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements,

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements is applicable only to
holding Company and not applicable to two subsidiaries.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

Aok ok

Ankush Goel
Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No.:505121
Date: 17 November 2021 ICATUDIN : 21505121AAAACW1909



SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021
(All amounts are in millions Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital working-in-progress
Investment property
Right-of-use assets
Goodwill

Other intangible assets
Financial asset

(i) Investments

(il) Loans

(iii) Other financial assets
Other non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Financial Asset

()Investments

(ityTrade receivables

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents

(iv) Bank balance other than (iii) above
(v) Other financial assets

Other current assets

Asset held for Sale

TOTAL
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Equity share capital

Other equity

Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total Equity

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings

(ii) Lease liabilities
Provisions

Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Other non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings

(ii) Lease liabilities

(i) Trade payables

-Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
-Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities

Other current liabilities

Provisions

Liabilities directly associated with assets held for sale

Current tax liabilities (net)

TOTAL

Significant Accounting Policies

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration no.: 101248W/W-100022

Sohurh L)

Ankush Goel
Partner
Membership No.: 505121

Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 November 2021

Note As at As at Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 01 April 2019
3(a) 933.87 916.63 827.40
3(c) 017 7.76 .
4 230 2.30 2.30
36 4429 50.57 23.25
3(d) 1,059.29 1,059.29 1,059.29
3(b) 5.84 444 5.65
5 29.02 23.02 495
6(a) 9.28 8.96 7.61
6(b) 235 161 $6.75
7 27.17 44.59 43.17
2,113.58 2,119.17 2,030.37
8 990.57 729.31 787.84
9 363.34 275.11 265.87
10 765.39 615.76 829.50
11 171.59 180.96 59.36
12 72.05 61.25 3.36
12A 1.55 973 1.52
7 163.32 122.93 135.56
- - 0.16
2,527.81 1,995.05 2,083.17
4,641.39 4,114.22 4,113.54
13 16.13 16.13 16.13
14 3,316.40 3,038.19 2,707.00
3,332.53 3,054.32 2,723.13
5.48 1.88 1.16
3,338.01 3,056.20 2,724.29
15 7.54 25.32 36.99
36 45.98 49.91 22.57
16 27.15 22,60 16.28
17 60.27 49.83 66.52
18 29.91 - -
170.85 147.66 142.36
19 326.44 191.14 479.42
36 4.29 3.55 2.26
20
53.55 30.29 38.22
584.31 505.20 593.30
21 87.57 110,18 94.50
22 5631 42,57 26.00
16 5.81 5.23 3.62
- - 0.42
23 14.25 22.20 9.15
1,132.53 910.36 1,246.89
4,641.39 4,114.22 4,113.54
2

T & Gujral
ijector
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Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 Noveml

ber 2021

Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 November 2021



SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts are in millions Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

Note For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Revenue from operations 24 4,181.75 4,222.40
Other income 25 104,18 101.57
Total income 4,285.93 4,323.97
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 26 2,991.07 3,177.51
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 27 37.63 (108.24)
Employee benefits expenses 28 488.57 472.16
Finance costs 29 25.04 46.71
Depreciation and amortisation expense 30 95.39 84.26
Other expenses 31 261.10 205.38
Total expenses 3,898.80 3,877.78
Profit before tax 387.13 446.19
Tax expense 32
Current tax 94.22 108.22
Deferred tax 10.59 (16.13)
Total tax expenses 104.81 92.09
Profit for the year (A) 282.32 354.10
Other comprehensive income
(1) Etems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
(a) Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit obligation (0.61) (2.24)
(b) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 0.15 0.56
(0.46) (1.68)
(II) Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
(a) Exchange differences in translating financial statements of foreign operations (0.05) (0.10)
Total other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) (B) (0.51) (1.78)
Total comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) (A+B) 281.81 352.32
Profit for the year attributable to
Owners of the Company 278.72 353.38
Non-controlling interests 3.60 0.72
282.32 354.10

Total other comprehensive income for the year attributable to
Owners of the Company (0.51) (1.78)
Non-controlling interests -

(0.51) (1.78)

Total comprehensive i for the year attributable to
Owmers of the Company 278.21 351.60
Non-controlling interests 3.60 0.72

281.81 352.32
Earnings per equity share
Basic and diluted {nominal value per share INR 10 (31 March 2020: INR 10)} 37 172.82 219.11
Significant accounting policies 2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Dy

Chartered Accountants GS Teluifks Manufacturing Privi

ICAI Firm Registration no.: 101248W/W-100022 N

Ankush Goel ) Bor
Partner Nior _ Direr o P
Membership No.: 505121 DIN: 00198825 DIN: 00198890
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: 17 November 2021 Date: 17 November 2021 Date: 17 November 2021



SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in millions Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 387.13 446.19
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense 95.39 84.26
Interest income (4.28) (4.66)
Finance costs 25.04 46.71
Dividend income (3.92) (3.70)
Unrealised foreign exchange differences 0.55 7.88
Mark to market loss/(profit) on derivative contracts entered to mitigate foreign currency risk 8.18 (8.22)
Net gain on account of sale of investment (7.98) (12.42)
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) (0.64) (0.44)
(Appreciation)/ diminution in value of investment (35.04) 5.52
Provision (excess provision) for loss allowance on financial assets created / (written back) (1.05) 2.97
Liabilities no longer required written back (1.79) “
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 461.59 564.09
Working capital adjustments:
(Increase) / decrease in trade receivables (144.85) 227.33
(Increase) / decrease in inventories (261.25) 58.52
Increase in loans (0.07) (2.55)
Decrease / (increase) in other non-current assets 0.94 (0.18)
Decrease / (increase) in other financial assets 8.18 (8.22)
(Increase) / decrease in other current assets (48.60) 20.87
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables 105.72 (104.19)
Increase / (decrease) in other current financial liabilities 8.68 3.17)
Increase in other current liabilities 13.74 16.57
Increase in provisions 4.61 6.15
Increase in other non-current liabilities 29.91 .
Cash generated from operations 178.60 775.22
Income tax paid (net) (87.23) (97.54)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 91.37 677.68
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (126.21) (163.95)
Proceeds from sate of property, plant and equipment 6.54 036
Purchase of non - current investments - (18.07)
Purchase of current investments (net) (51.21) (2.35)
Fixed deposits matured 1.23 1.24
Investment in fixed deposit (14.20) (0.44)
Interest received 547 091
Dividend received 3.92 3.70
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (174.46) (178.60)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from current borrowings 728.24 325.48
Repayment of current borrowings (597.61) (625.75)
Repayment of non-current borrowings (30.21) (11.33)
Interest paid (17.64) (37.51)
Dividend paid - (20.42)
Repayment of lease liability (7.95) (6.73)
Net cash generated / (used) by financing activities (C) 74.83 (376.26)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (8.26) 122.82
Effect of exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents held in foreign currency (1.11) (1.22)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 180.96 59.36
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 171.59 180.96
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 11):
- Cash on hand 0.53 0.61
- Balances with banks
- on current accounts 171.06 173.74
- cheques in hand - 6.61
171.59 180.96

Notes:

(i) The Group has used profit before tax as the starting point for presenting operating cash flows using the indirect method.

(ii) Refer note 15 for changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration no.: 101248W/W-100022

Jiaek

Ankush Goel
Partner
Membership No.: 505121

Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 November 2021

DIN: 00198825

Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 November 2021

DIN: 00198890

Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 November 2021
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SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

1. Corporate information

SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited (‘the Holding company’ or ‘the company’) is a private
limited company domiciled in India. The Company was incorporated on 27 April 2011 under the
Companies Act 1956. The Company is engaged in the business of providing electronic
manufacturing goods and related services.

SGS Tekniks is having four manufacturing locations in India along with design and development
center at Stuttgart, Germany and Gurgaon, India. The production facilities are located at Gurgaon,
Manesar, Baddi and Bangalore.

The Holding Company has investment in two Subsidiaries, SGS Infosystem Private Limited
(Operating in India) and SGS Solution GMBH (Operating in Germany). The Holding company
along with two subsidiaries are referred as “the Group” hereinafter.

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
A. Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements (referred as financial statements) have been prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the
‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The consolidated financial statements up to and for the year ended 31 March 2020 were
prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, notified under
Section 133 of the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act (hereinafter referred to as
previous GAAP).

As these are the Group’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS), Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting
Standards has been applied. An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has affected the
previously reported financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Group is
provided in Note 44.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Holding Company’s Board of
Directors on 17 November 2021.

Details of the Group’s significant accounting policies are included in Note No. 2 (F) to 2 (Y).

B. Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in millions Indian Rupees (INR), which
is also the Holding Company’s functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the
nearest millions and two decimal thereof, except share data and per share data, unless otherwise

indicated.

C. Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for
the following items:
A/




SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Ttems | Measurement basis
(a) Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Prgs ent value of defined benefit
obligations
(b) Certain financial assets and liabilities .
. . e Fair value
(including derivative instruments) A
(c) Other financial assets and liabilities Amortised cost

D. Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Holding

Company and its subsidiaries.

Consolidated financial statements include consolidated balance sheet, consolidated
statement of profit and loss and consolidated cash flow, Consolidated Statement of changes
in equity and notes to the consolidated financial statements that form an integral part
thereof.

(i) Subsidiary companies are consolidated on a line-by-line basis by adding together the
book values of the like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses after eliminating all
significant intra-group balances and intra-group transactions and also unrealized profits or
losses. The results of operations of a subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date on which the parent subsidiary relationship came into existence.

(ii) Non-controlling interest in net profits of consolidated subsidiaries for the period is
identified and adjusted against the income in order to arrive at the net income attributable to
the shareholders of the Group. Their share of net assets is identified and presented in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet separately. Where accumulated losses attributable to the
minorities are in excess of their equity, in the absence of the contractual obligation on the
minorities, the same is accounted for by the Holding Company.

(iii) The difference between the cost to the Group of investment in subsidiaries and the
proportionate share in the equity of the Investee Company as at the date of acquisition of
stake is recognized in the consolidated financial statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve,
as the case may be.

(iv) As far as possible, the consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform
accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are
presented, to the extent possible, in the same manner as the Holding Company's Standalone
financial statements.

(v) The particulars of subsidiaries, which is included in consolidation and the Company’s
holding therein, are as under

Period of Shareholding
Entit Country of Principal Relationship | financial as at
y Incorporation | Activity p ear 31 March
y 2021
SGS
Infosystem . . o April- o
Private India Rental income | Subsidiary March 99.68%
Limited
3GS Electronic
N Solutions | 9°rmany Design and | ¢\ igiary | APTE | 660006
. b {Deutschland) Manufacturing March o
Mo GMBH
e Sub-assembly




SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

E. Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and
assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information
about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with
information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.

Judgements

-Leases; whether arrangement contains a lease and lease classification- Note 36

Estimates
The areas involving critical estimates are:

- Estimation of income tax (current and deferred) — Note 32

- Estimation of impairment of goodwill — Note 2 (K)

- Estimation of impairment of financial assets — Note 43

- Recognition and measurement of contingencies — Note 33

- Estimation of defined benefit obligation — Note 38

- Estimation of determining an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value

at the end of its life — Note 3

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a
financial impact on the Group and that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

F. Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current / non-current
classification.

Operating cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash or cash equivalents. The Group has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the
purpose of classification of its assets and liability as current and non-current.

An asset is classified as current when it is:
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a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

c) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

¢) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the period presented in
these financial statements.

G. Foreign currency transactions

ii.

jii.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional
currency’). The consolidated financial statements have been prepared and presented in Indian
Rupees (INR), which is the Holding company’s functional and presentation currency.

Initial recognition and settlement

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the
actual rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign operation

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations (subsidiary company) including goodwill and
fair value adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated into INR, the functional currency of
the Company, at the exchange rate at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign
operation operations are translated into INR at the exchange rate at the dates of the transactions
or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

From 1 April 2019 onward, exchange differences are recognised in OCI and accumulated in
equity (as exchange differences on translating the financial statements of foreign operation),
except to the extent that the exchange differences are allocated to NCI.

iv. Measurement at the reporting date

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into th
functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary items that
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at th
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when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at
fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation differences
on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equity instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation
differences on non-monetary assets such as equity investments classified as FVOCI are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

H. Measurement of fair values

A number of the accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs
used in the valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The Holding company has an established internal control framework with respect to the
measurement of fair values. This includes a finance team that has overall responsibility for
overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports
directly to the chief financial officer.

The finance team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments.
If third party information, is used to measure fair values, then the finance team assesses the
evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the
requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations
should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data
as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into
different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its
entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant
to the entire measurement.

The Group recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values used in preparing
these financial statements is included in the respective notes.

I. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is defined as any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instruments of another entity.

i. Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets
and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the;
contractual provisions of the instrument.
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ii.

iii.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at
fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

a) Amortised cost; or
b) FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the
period the Group changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and
is not designated as at FVTPL:

- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect

contractual cash flows; and
- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and
assets at | losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in
FVTPL profit or loss.

Financial These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
assets at| effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment

amortised cost | losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-
recognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability
is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is
designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair
value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss.
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognn@on Q-

Financial assets
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The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the

transferred assets are not derecognised.
Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire.

The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash
flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability
based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified
terms is recognised in profit or loss.

iv. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance
sheet when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

v. Derivative financial instruments

The Holding Company holds derivative financial instruments to mitigate its foreign currency
risk exposures.

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives
are measured at fair value and changes therein are generally recognised in statement of profit
and loss.

J. Property, plant and equipment

i. Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any
directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of
materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working
condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it is located.
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SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Property, plant and equipment under construction are disclosed as capital work-in-progress.
Cost of construction that relate directly to specific property, plant and equipment and that are
attributable to construction activity in general are included in capital work-in-progress.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then
they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit
or loss.

ii. Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
property, plant and equipment recognised as at 1 April 2019, measured as per the previous
GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such property, plant and equipment
(see Note 3).

iii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group.

iv. Depreciation

Depreciation on items of property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method,
based on the management’s estimates of useful lives of the assets, which is similar to the useful
life prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Depreciation on additions/ (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from / (upto) the date
on which asset is ready for use/ (disposed of).

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end
and adjusted if appropriate.

Losses arising from retirement or gains or losses arising from disposal of property, plant and
equipment which are carried at cost are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

v. Reclassification to Investment Property

When the use of property changes from owner-occupied to investment property, the property is
reclassified as investment property at its carrying amount on the date of reclassification.

K. Goodwill and other Intangible assets
a) Goodwill

For measurement of goodwill that arises on a business combination is tested annually for
impairment. Subsequent measurement is at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

b) Other Intangible Assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are measured initially at cost. After igigi 15
recognition, intangible asset is carried at its cost less any accumulated amortisation and aiy ™
accumulated impairment loss, if any.
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¢) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.

d) Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful
lives using the straight-line method and is included in amortisation expense in profit or loss.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:
- Computer software 3 years

Amortisation method, useful life and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial
year and adjusted if appropriate.

Losses arising from retirement and gains or losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset
are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

¢) Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Group has evaluated the requirement of Ind AS 101 and elected to
continue with the carrying value of all of its intangible assets recognised as at 1 April 2019,
measured as per the previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such
intangible assets.

L. Investment Property

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or
for both, but not for sale in ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of
goods or for services or for administrative purposes. Upon initial recognition, investment
property is measured at cost.

On transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying of all its
investment property recognised as at 1 April 2019, measured as per the previous GAAP and use
that carrying value as the deemed cost of such investment property.

Any gain or loss on disposal of investment property is recognised in profit or loss.
The Fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair value is determined by an

independent valuer who hold a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has
experience in the location and category of the investment property being valued.

M. Impairment

Impairment of financial instruments
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In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost e.g., cash and bank balances, investment in equity instruments of subsidiary
companies, trade receivables and loans etc.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost is
credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have occurred.

Evidence that the financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

» significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

» the breach of contract such as a default or being past due as per the ageing brackets as
mentioned in note 43;

* it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial re-organisation; or

» the disappearance of active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
Trade receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track
changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets, the Group determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has
not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if
credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in subsequent period, credit
quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance
based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial asset. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which
results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
expense/income in the statement of profit and loss. ECL for financial assets measured as at
amortized cost and contractual revenue receivables is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an
integral part of the measurement of those assets in the consolidated financial statements. The
allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Group
does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

ii. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine if there is indication of any impairment. If any indication
exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

Assets that do not generate independent cash flows are grouped together into cash generating
units (CGU).

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and
1ts fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash ﬂows~~w~'
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An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

N. Investment in debentures/bonds, mutual funds and private equity

Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year from the
date of acquisition are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as
non-current investments.

Investments in debentures or bonds are measured at amotised cost at carrying value
representative of fair value. These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest income, foreign exchange gain and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment in mutual funds, specific bonds (marked linked) and structured product/ private
equity (i.e.; unquoted investments) are measured at fair value through profit and loss. Net gains
and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss.

0. Leases

Effective 01 April 2019, the Group has applied Ind AS 116. On inception of a contract, the
Group {as a lessee} assesses whether it contains a lease. A contract is, or contains a lease
when it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Group assesses whether:

{i} the contract involves the use of an identified asset

{ii} the Group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and

{iii} the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset {"ROU"}
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for
leases with a term of twelve months or less {short-term leases} and low value leases. For these
short-term and low value leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Lease contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group allocates
payments in the contract to the lease and non- lease components based on their relative stand-
alone prices and applies the lease accounting model only to lease components.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, any asset restoration obligation, and less any lease incentives received.
They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Right-of-use assets are also adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. Unless the
Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased assets or renewal of the leases

the end of the lease term, recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated to a residual valugoye;
the shorter of their estimated useful life or lease term. 3
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SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments {including 'in-substance fixed'
payments} and variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, less any lease
incentives receivable. 'In-substance fixed' payments are payments that may, in form, contain
variability but that, in substance, are unavoidable. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease term includes periods subject to extension options which the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise and excludes the effect of early termination options where the Group is not
reasonably certain that it will exercise the option. Minimum lease payments include the cost of
a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain it will purchase the underlying asset after
the lease term.

Lease liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
asset if the Group changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a

termination option and any lease modification.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense
in the period over which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. In respect of
variable leases which guarantee a minimum amount of rent over the lease term, the guaranteed
amount is considered to be an 'in-substance fixed' lease payment and included in the initial
calculation of the lease liability. Payments which are 'in-substance fixed' are charged against the
lease liability.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments are presented as follows in the Group 's statement of cash flows:

- short-term lease payments, payments for leases of low-value assets and variable lease
payments that are not included in the measurement of the lease liabilities are presented
within cash flows from operating activities;

- payments for the interest element of recognised lease liabilities are included in 'interest
paid' within cash flows from financing activities; and

- payments for the principal element of recognised lease liabilities are presented within cash
flows from financing activities

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Group applies Ind AS 115
Revenue from contracts with customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.

P. Inventories

Inventories which comprise raw materials, work-in-progress, finished goods and stores and
spares, are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase (net of recoverable taxes, where applicable),
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location

and condition.

The basis of determining costs for various categories of inventories are as follows: -
Raw materials, stores and spares - Weighted average method
Work-in-progress and finished goods - Material cost plus

appropriate share of
labour, manufacturinﬁf

overheads.




SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The net realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to the selling prices
of related finished products. Raw materials and other supplies held for use in the production of
finished products are not written down below cost except in cases where material prices have
declined and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products will exceed their net realisable
value. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

Q. Revenue recognition

The Group earns revenue primarily from sale of electronic manufacturing goods and related
services. Effective 1 April 2019, the Group has applied Ind AS 115 which establishes a
comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be
recognized. The Group has adopted Ind AS 115 using the cumulative effect method. The effect
of initially applying this standard is recognized at the date of initial application (i.e. 1 April
2019).

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable taking into
account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on
behalf of the government.

However, Goods and Services Tax (GST) is not received by the Group on its own account.
Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the
government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized.

a) Revenue from sale of goods and services

The Group recognized revenue when (or as) a performance obligation was satisfied, i.e. when
'control' of the goods underlying the particular performance obligation were transferred to the
customer. The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type
of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Income from services rendered is recognised based on agreements/ arrangements with the
customers as and when the performance obligation is completed and the amount of revenue can

be measured reliably.

Further, revenue from sale of goods and services is recognized based on a 5-Step Methodology
which is as follows:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for
discounts, incentives, etc if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also
excludes taxes collected from customers.




SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on
contracts. Contract assets when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of
time is required, as per contractual terms.

Unearned or deferred revenue is recognised when there is billings in excess of revenues.

Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and
requirements. The Group reviews modification to contract in conjunction with the original
contract, basis which the transaction price could be allocated to a new performance obligation,
or transaction price of an existing obligation could undergo a change. In the event transaction
price is revised for existing obligation, a cumulative adjustment is accounted for.

The Group has evaluated that there is no significant impact on the financial statements due to
Ind AS 115.

Other operating revenue
Other operating revenue is recognized as per the terms of contracts with customers when the
related services are rendered.

Other Income
Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the income is established.

R. Employee benefits
(i) Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected
to be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, if the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the
amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

(ii) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays
specified contributions to a separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts.
The Group makes specified monthly contributions towards Employee Provident Fund (EPF)
and Employees’ State Insurance to Government administered fund which is a defined
contribution plan. The Group’s contribution is recognized as an expense in the Statement of
Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

(iii) Defined benefit plans

Gratuity

The Group operates a gratuity plan wherein every employee is entitled to the benefit
equivalent to 15 days basic salary last drawn for each completed year of service as per the
payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution
plan. The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating
the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior period
discounting that amount. R




SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and
losses are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). The Group determines the net
interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability for the period by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual
period to the then- net defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the net
defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments.
Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in
profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss
on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Group recognises gains and
losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount
rates used for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, are
based on the market yields on Government securities as at the Balance Sheet date, having
maturity periods approximating to the terms of related obligations.

Annual contributions are made to the employee's gratuity fund, established with the LIC (Plan
asset) every year. The fair value of plan assets is reduced from the gross obligation under the
defined benefit plans, to recognise the obligation on net basis.

(iv) Other long-term employee benefits
Compensated absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and
utilise it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment.
Since, the compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related service and are also not expected to be
utilized wholly within twelve months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a
long-term employee benefit. The Group records an obligation for such compensated absences in
the period in which the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. The
obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit
credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.

S. Provisions
(i) Provisions (other than employee benefits)

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are recognised at the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date.

- (ii) Onerous Contracts




SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by
the Group from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations
under the contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the present value of the
lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing
with the contract. Before such a provision is made, the Group recognizes any impairment loss
on the assets associated with that contract.

T. Government grants

Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received, and all the attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognized as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related
costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it
is recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

When the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets, the assets and the grant are recorded at
fair value amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of
consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset.

Export benefits

Export incentive entitlements are recognized as income when the right to receive credit as per
the terms of the scheme is established in respect of the exports made, and where there is no
uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant export proceeds.

U. Income taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The
amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or
received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using
tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on

a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
the assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used
for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses
and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence
that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of history of recent losses, the
Group recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary
differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available
against which such deferred tax asset can be realized.




SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are
recognised / reduced to the extent that it is probable / no longer probable respectively that the
related tax benefits will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realized or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes
levied by the same tax authorities.

V. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year. Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity and
dilutive equity equivalent shares outstanding during the year end, except where the results
would be anti-dilutive.

W. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present
obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present
obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant
provisions but are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote. Contingent
assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. However, contingent
assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits
will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

X. Operating segment

An operating segment is a component that engages in business activities from which it may
earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions
with any of the other components, and for which discrete financial information is available.

The Group is engaged in the business of manufacturing and supply of providing electronic
manufacturing goods and related services. Accordingly, the Group’s activities/ business is
reviewed regularly by the Group’s Board of directors (Chief Operating Decision Maker) from
an overall business perspective, rather than reviewing its products/services as individual
standalone components.

Based on the dominant source and nature of risks and returns of the Group, management has
identified its business segment as its primary reporting format.
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SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
short-term deposits, as defined above.

Z. Recently issued accounting pronouncements

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through a notification,
amended Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division I, II and
III of Schedule IIT and are applicable from April 1, 2021. Key amendments relating to Division
I which relate to companies whose financial statements are required to comply with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 are:

Balance Sheet

® Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head ‘financial liabilities’, duly
distinguished as current or non-current.

e Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in
equity share capital due to prior period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the
current reporting period.

Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.
Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-
progress and intangible asset under development.

e If a Group has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from
banks and financial institutions, then disclosure of details of where it has been used.

e Specific disclosure under ‘additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance with
approved schemes of arrangements, compliance with number of layers of companies, title
deeds of immovable property not held in name of Group, loans and advances to promoters,
directors, key managerial personnel (KMP) and related parties, details of benami property
held etc.

Statement of profit and loss:
e Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed
income and crypto or virtual currency specified under the head ‘additional information’ in

the notes forming part of consolidated financial statements.

The amendments are extensive and the Group will evaluate the same to give effect to them as
required by law.
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SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to ¢ d 0 ial

for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts are in millions Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

24

25

Revenue from operations

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

Revenue from contracts with customers

-Sale of products 4,090.46 4,113.62
~Sale of services 91.29 108.78
4,181.75 4,222.40
Notes:
a. Reconciliation of revenue recognized with the contract price is as follows:
Contract price 4,181.735 4,222 40
Revenue recognised 4.181.75 4,222.40
b. Contract balances
Contract liability, which arc included in ‘other current labilities® 3233 19.49
32.35 19.49
€. The Company has determincd that existing disclosures regarding the disaggregation of revenue using the cxisting is adeq; for its ci

Revenue disaggregation as per geography has been included in segment information (Refer note 39).

Other income
For the year ended

31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

Interest income on financial assct measured at amortised cost

- fixed deposit 3.56 3.95
- others 0.47 0.50
- financial assct 0.25 0.20
Dividend income from mutual funds mandatorily measured at FVIPL 392 3.70
Net gain/(losscs) on fair value changes in financial asscts measured at FVTPL 35.04 (3.52)
Net gain on account of sale of investment 7.98 12.42
Net gain on account of foreign exchange fluctuations 3274 27.27
Mark to market (loss)/gain on derivalive contracts entered to miligate foreign currency risk (8.18) 8.22
Gain on sale of property, plant and cquipment (net) 0.64 0.44
Government incentive* 20.21 37.34
Miscellancous income 4.74 13.05
Excess provision for loss atlowance on financial assets wrilten back 1.05 -
Liabilitics no longer required written back 1.79 -
104.18 101.57

*There are no unfulfifted conditions and other contingencics attached to government assistance




SGS Tekniks Manufactuving Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Al amounts are in millions Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)
26 Cost of materials consumed

Raw materials {includi

Opening inventory
Add: purchases (net)

Less : Closing invemory

2

3

Finished goods
Opening inventory

Less: Closing inventory

Total (A)

Work-in-progress
Opening stock

Less: Closing Stock

Total (B)

Total (A+B)

2

®

Employee benefits expenses

Salarics, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 38)
Gratuity (refer notc 38)

Compensaled absences (refer (o note 38)

Staff welfare expenses

e
=3

Finance costs

Interest expense:

Inicrest on term loan and vehicle loan measured at amortised cost
Interest on packing credil

Inicrest on cash credit

Interest on working capital loan

Interest -others

Interest expense on financial lability measured at amortised cost

Interest of Jate payment of ducs to micro enterpriscs and small enterprises

Inferest expense on income tax
Tuterest cost on lease linbilitics (refer notc 36)

purchased comp and packing material constmned)

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

511.64 678.41
3,289.96 3,010.74
3,801.60 3,689.15

810.53 Sll.od
2,991.07 3,177.51

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

72.69 48.74
53.04 72.60
19.65 (23.95)

144.98 60.69

127.00 144.98
17.98 (84.29)
37.63 (108.24)

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

462,73 44396
8.36 8.61
375 313
219 3.61
11.54 10.83

488,57 472,16

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

34 4.67
.44 6.70
2.91 14.48
6.73 4,935
0.41 671
0.05 135
0.92 1.83
1.67 1.88
4.77 4.14
25.04 46.71




SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited

Notes to lidated financial st ts for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts are in millions Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

30 Depreciation and amortisation expense

3

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

Depreciation on property, plant and cquipments 85.98 76.31
Amortisation of intangible assets 3.13 2.66
Depreciation on Right of usc asset 6.28 5.29

95.39 84.26

Other expenses

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

Power and fuel 36.25 38.05
Repair and maintenance

Building 130 3.05

Machinery 15.61 9.90

Others 7.46 7.94
Job work charges L2 2.75
Bank charges 10.12 9.04
Insurance 9.23 6.03
Printing and stationery 4.53 278
Postage and courier 4.49 4.04
Travelling and conveyance 38.72 3155
Ralcs and taxes 1.37 381
Provision for loss allowance on financial asscts - 297
Legal and professional charges 21.92 9.35
Office maintcnance 20.40 17.70
Subscription and membership 150 1.73
Canteen cxpenses 3.87 333
Festival expenscs L.77 2.61
Charity and donation 0.24 0.52
Expenditure on corporate social responsibility (refer note no 34) 13.78 -
Payment to auditors (cxcluding taxes):

- As auditor 3.02 1.62

- For reimbursement of cxpenses 0.11 0.24
Cartage and freight outgoing 46.24 22.94
Development charges 3.60 5.57
Miscellancous cxpenscs 14.43 17.86

261.10 203.38

4% Q@

e
it

<
\u
am g |




Fekniks Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to consulidated financial statements for fhe year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts are in nuiffions Indian vupees unless otherwise stated)

Note 32 Income Tax Expeise

A Amounts recognised in statenient of profit and loss

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Current tax
Current y
Previous period

Defereed tax
Origination and reveesal of temporary di Terences

Tnconie tax expense veported in the statement of profi¢ and loss

98.26

4.03) (6.68)
9421 108.22

1059 Q6.13)
10,59 (16.13)
104.80 92.09

B. Antounts recognised in other comprehensive Income/ (expense)
Pasticutars For the year ended  For the year cnded
31 March 2021 31 March 2028
Re-Measurement gain‘loss on defined benefit obligation ols 0.56
Income tax recoguised in other com prehensive income/expensc) 0.15 0.56
C. Recouiliation of cffective tax rate
Reconcitiation of tax expense and the accounting profiv’ (loss) multiplicd by India’s domestie tax mate for the year ended 31 Mareh 2021 and 31 March 2020:
For the year ended 31 March 2021 For the year cuded 31 March 2020
Particulars Rate Amount Rate Amount
Profit before tax from confinuing operations 387.13 HE19
Tax using the Holding Company’s domeslic tax mte 25.17% 97.43 25.17% 112,30
Tax effect
Non-doductible expenses 1.09% 423 0.81% 160
Income taxable at speciliod rate 0.52% (201 -1.09% (488
Tux-exempt inconte - Dividend income - _ 0.21% (©93)
Change in tax rates - . -4.23% 8.87)
Changes in cstimates related to prior years 0.73% 282 -0.22% 0.99)
Changes in unsecognised lemporary differences 0.60% 233 0.42% 1.86
Elfective tax rate 27.07% 104.80 20.65% 9209
. Deferred Tax:
he following is the analysis of deferred tax assets prosented in the balance sheet;
Particulars Asat Asat Asat
artedtars March 31, 202¢ March 31,2020 March 31,2019
Delerred tax assels 2473 24.06 2712
Deferred tax liubilities (8500 (73.89) (9360
Deferved ta liability (uet) (60.27) (49.83) (66.52)

Movement of temporary differences

Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2020 For the ended 31 March 2021

Partculars i | Recomnized BBt | ccognised tn OC1 g arpioee | Recoarleat PO | cognizea i 11 e e
Provision for Employee bencfits 17.38 (1.31) 0.56 16.63 076 0.15 17.54
Property. plant & equipment and Infangibles assels (85.20)| 17.94 - (67.26) (4.35 . (11.61)|
Murk 1o market gain on derivative contracts entered to mifigate foscign

curreney {053 (1.92) - (245 206 - 0.39)
Fair valuation of investments 91y 373 - (18 (8.82) - (13.00)
Capital losscs carried forward 012 {0.12) - - - - -
Leases - 073 - 073 0.78 - 131
Loss allowances 9.62 292) - 670 (1.02); 3.68
‘Total (66.52, 1613 0.56 (983 (10.59; 0.15 {60.27)
Note:

D
toresecable fulure.

ed tax assets has not been recognized on temporaey dillerences in selation to freehold Jand as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of these temporury dillk

ces and it is probable that these differences will nol reverse in




SGS Tekniks Munufacturing Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{(All amounts uie in miilions Indian rupees unless otherwise stuted)

33

34

=

o

. In Februsry 2019, Supreme Caurt of India in its judgement claritied the ility of st that showld be

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments:
Clniin against Group not acknowledged as debt

(i) lncome Tax Demands being disputed by the Holding company INR 5.1 Million (31 March 2020: INR 5.1 Million: 31 March 2019:INR 10,27 Million ). The Holdiug company hus deposited INT 4,22 Million wndes protest
and the same has been included in the Long -term Loans and Advances, refer note 14, The income fa demand oxeludes penalty and interest, Based on extornal consaliant advice. the Tiolding eompany has concluded that
chances of liability devolving on the company is not probable and hence no provision in respeet thereof has been made in the books,

(D) Civil matters being disputed by the Liolding company INR 0.18 Million (31 March 2020: TNR 0.18 Miltion, 3t March 2019: INR 0.18 Milliow. Based on fegal advice. the Holding Company has concluded that chanees of
tiability devolving on the company is not probable and hence no provision in respeet thereof has been made in the books,

(iif) Pending resolution of aforesaid procevdings, it is not practicable for the Holding Company to estimato the fiming of cash outflows, it any, in respect of the above as it is deferminable only on receipt of judgements” decision
pending with various foroms/authorities.

. Capital and other commitments

istimated amount of conlracts remaining to be exceitled on capital account and not provided tor (net of advances): INR 3,99 Million (3% Mareh 2020: 16.07 Million . 31 March 2019: Nib)

Capital Commitment

idered to measure obli under Empls Provident Fund Act, 1952. The Company believes that there

are interprelative chatl on he ication of judgel i ingly, owing to y regarding he i of matler upto the dute of Supreme Court judgement, the Company ha

sturled paying

provident fund contribulion as per the Supreme court judgement from March 2019, Further, management also belicves that the impaet of the same on the company will not be material.
Carporate social vesponsibility

Corporate social responsibility (CSI) ns per the provisions of ssetion 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is applicable to the Group.

Particulor For the year ended 31 | For the year ended
Avticulars Mareh 2021 31 March 2020

Gross amount requied (o be spent by the Group during
the vear 778 5.87
‘Amount spont and paid during the year

) Conslruction’ noquisition of any assel

ii) on purpos other than (i) above 10.00 -

*amount lying unspent at the year end 31 March 2021 is INR 3,63 Milkion

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the company has recognised expenses of INR 1378 Million under "Other Expenses” in Statement of Profit and Loss out of which INR 6.00 Million pertains to year ended 31 March 2020
and balance pertains to year ended 31 March 2021.




SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to conolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts are in mitlions Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

35, Related party disclosures

a} List of related partics

Description of relationship Name of the related party

Mr. Sanjiv Narayan (Dircctor and shareholder)

Mr. J.S. Gujral (Director and sharcholder)

Key managerial personnel M. R.S. Lonial (Director and sharcholder)

Mr. K.K. Pant (Dircctor and sharcholder)

Mr. Sandeep Tandon (Dircctor w-e-f 03 November 2020)

Ullimate Holding Company "Tancom Electronics Private Limited

(i) SGS Manufacturing & Trading Private Limited
Entitics in which Key managerial
persomkl's hus significant influence (i) Syrma SGS Technology Limited (forerly known as Syrnxa Technology Privale Limited)
(from 5-N 2020 upto 17-S ber-2021) ~refer note 40




$GS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to ¢ | financial state

3:

9

Related party disclosures

b) Related Pacty transactions during the year ;-

s for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Al amounts are in millions Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended For the ycar ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Advances Received -
- Sanjiv Narayan 1.20 -
- LS.Gujral 114 1.00
- RS Lonial 0.50 -
Short term employce benefits# - -
- Sanjiv Narayan 5.41 501
- JS Gujral 10.68 9.58
- RS Lonial 10.67 9.36
- KKPant 10.67 9.36

#The benefits to the key managerial personnel as disclosed above includes only short term cmployce benefits as per the

board approval. There are no post cmployment and other long term benefit available to the key managerial personnel.

¢) Outstanding balance as at year end

Year ended

Year ended

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2020 01 April 2019
Employee benefit and other dues

- Samjiv Narayan 221 .35 0.55
- J.S.Gujral 4.86 2.78 L7
- R. S, Loniat 253 108 1.09
- KKPant 2.03 1.00 £.00




SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Allamounts are in millions Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

36. Leases
This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee. The Holding company has taken lease properties which are being used as
manufacturing plants. Lease contracts are entered for a term of 10 years to 11 years.
The Group has adopted Ind AS 116 by applying exemption provided under Ind AS 101. Following approach is followed on transition date (1 April
2019) when applying Ind AS 116 initially using modified retrospective approach where in:
i) lease liability is recognised, for leases which were previously classified as operating leases, by measuring the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application.
i1} a right-of-use assets is recognised at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments
relating to that lease recognised in the restated assets and liabilities immediately before the date of initial application.

The Group also applied the available practical expedients wherein it:

a) Used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics

b) Applied the short-term leases exemptions to leases with lease term that ends within 12 months at the date of initial application
¢) Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application

Information about leases for which the Group is a lessee is presented below

(i) Right of use asset

Building Total
Cost
As at 01 April 2019 23.25 23.25
Additions 32.61 32.61
Termination/end of lease contracts - -
As at 31 March 2020 55.86 55.86
Additions - -
Termination/end of lease contracts - -
As at 31 March 2021 55.86 55.86

Accumulated depreciation
As at 01 April 2019

Charge for the year 5.29 5.29
Termination/end of lease contracts - -
As at 31 March 2020 5.29 5.29
Charge for the year 6.28 6.28
Termination/end of lease contracts - -
As at 31 March 2021 11.57 11.57
Carrying amount
As at 31 March 2021 44.29 44,29
As at 31 March 2020 50.57 50.57

Asat 01 April 2019 23.25 23.25




(ii) Lease liability
Opening balance
Additions
Accretion of interest
Payments

Termination/end of lease contracts

Closing balance

Current
Non-Current

(iii) Contractual maturities of lease liabilities on as undiscounted basis are as given below:

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years

(iv) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Depreciation charge on right-of-use assets
Interest expense on lease liabilities (included in finance costs)

(v) Discount rate

Discount rate

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

As at 01 April 2019

53.46 24.83 24.83
- 31.22 .
4.77 4.14 .
(7.95) (6.73) -

50.28 53.46 24.83

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

As at 01 April 2019

4.29 3.55 2.26
45.99 49.91 22.57
50.28 53.46 24.83

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

As at 01 April 2019

8.69 832 4.17
38.89 37.20 18.85
23.56 33.94 11.38
71.14 79.46 34.40

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

6.28 5.29
4.77 4.14
11.05 9.43

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

As at 01 April 2019

9.25%

9.25%

9.25%

Lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of

1 April 2019

(vi) Effect of standard
Rent expense decreased by

Depreciation increased by
Interest expense increased by

37. Earning per share

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

7.95 470
(6.28) (5.29)
@.77 (4.14)
(3.10) (4.73)

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Net profit after tax

Net profit attributable to equity shareholders

Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of
carnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share of face value of INR 10 each.

278.72

27872
16,12,785

172.82

353.38

353.38
16,12,785

219.11

There are no dilutive equity shares.
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38, Employee Bencfits
Detined contribution plan
Provident Fund and Otler Funds : A defined ibution plan is a post loy benefit plan under which (he Group pays specified contributions for provident fund and pension as per the

provisions of the Provident Fund Act, 1952 and other acts of the government, The Group's contribution is recoguised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the
employees render the related services, The Group's obligation is limited to the amounts contributed Dy it as follows.

. Year ended Year ended
Particula
Artioulars 31 Mach 2021 31 March 2020
Provident fund 746 746
Employces” State Insurance 0.76 102
Other Fund 0.14 0.13
Total 8.36 8.61

Delined benefit plan

Gratwity plaa: The Group operates a gratuity plan whercin every cmployee is entitled to the benefit equivalent to 15 days basic sakary st drawn for caclt completed year of service. Gratnty is
payable to all eligible cmployecs of the Group on tlie reti or or death or p disabl in tewrus of the provisions of Payment of Gratwity Act. 1972 or as per the Group plan
whichiever is more beveficial. The Group has funded the liabitity 1owands defined benefit obligation with the Life Insurance Corporation (LIC). Ralc of return is piven by the msurance company. The
benefits vest afier 5 years of continuous service except in case of death where no vesting corditions apply.

The following table seis fonh the status of the Gratuily Plan of the Group and the amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit i Loss,

@) Net defined benefit fiability:

Particulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020 As at 01 Aprit 2019

Non-current 15.39 12.40 8.92
Cutrent 349 298 139
Total fiability 18.88 15,38 10.51

b) Movement in defined benefit liability:

Particulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020 As at 01 April 2019

Defined benefit obligation, beginning of the

year 19.44 1423 9.14
Current service cost 2.75 245 1.86
Interest cost 127 0.93 0.70
Actuarial loss 0.63 219 332
Benefits paid (1.02) (0.36) ©.79
Defined benefit obligation, end of the vear 23.07 19.44 14.23

©) Movement in the fair value of plan assets :

Particulary As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020 As at 01 April 2019
Fair valuc of plan asscts. beginning of the year 406 373 388
Retumm on plar asscts 0.26 0.24 0.30
Contributions 0.86 0.50 0.50
Benefits paid (1.02) (0.36) 0.79)
Actuatial gain/(loss) on plan asscts 0,03 (0.05) 0.t7
Fair value of plin assets, end of the vear 4.19 4.06] 3.72
) Funded status
Particulars As at_31 Mareh 2021 As at 31 March 2020 As at 01 Aprit 2019
Deficit of plan assets over obligations 18.88 13,38 10.51
Surplus of plan assels over obligations - - -
&) Composition of Planned As
. As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020 As w01 April 2019
Particulars
LIC* 4.19 4.06 373

* Tavestment details of LIC is not avaitable with the Group

)} Net periodic gratuity cost, included in employee cost, consist of the following components:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Cunient service cost 275 245
Inferest cost 1.26 0.93
Return on phin asseis (0.26) ©0.24)
Net actuarial loss recognized during the ycar 0.61 2.24
Total (included in © y

Total {included in “Employee benefits 436 538

evpense’™)




£) Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability/ (assets)

Particulars As at_31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020 As at 01 April 2019

Actuanal (gain)/ losses arising from:

Demographic asswnplion (A) - - -

Finaucial assumptions (B) - 137 2.54

Experience adjustment (C) 0.63 0.82 0.78
Be-mczlsummem of the net defined benefit 063 219 332
linbility (A)HBIH(C)
Re-neasurement of plan assels (0.03) 0.05 0.17
Total 0.60 2.24 3.49

h) Assumption used in accounting for the defined benefit plan are set out below:

) As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020 As at 01 April 2019
Particulars
Discount rate 6.50% 6.50% 7.75%
Expecled rate of safary increase 8.00%)| 8.00%| 8.00%|
Retirement age 38760 years] 58760 years 58160 years|
Montality table IALM (2012-14) TALM (2012-14) IALM (2006-08)|
Withdrawal rales
- Upto 30 years age 40.00% 40.00% 40.00%
- From 31 to 44 years 13.00%| 15.00% 15.00%
- Abave 44 vears 7.00%| 7.00%] 7.00%|

Discount rate:

The discount raic is based on the prevailing market yiclds of Indian govermment securities as at the balance sheet dale for the estimated lerne of thie obligations.

Salary escalation rate:

The estimates of future salary cscalation rate considered in actuarial valuation takes into account the Inflation. seniority, promotion and other relevant factors on a long-term basis. Expected
contribution for the next period is INR 3.49 Million (3| March 2020: 2.98 Mitlion)

i) Sensitivity analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate and expected salary increase. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
rcasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while lolding all other assumptions constant:

Particulars

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

As at 01 April 2019

Increase Decrease

Tucrease Decrcase

Increase Dccrease

Discowt ratc (1% movement)

Salary escalation rate (1% movement)

128 143

139 127

123 111

120 110

0.87

0.86

0.78

0.79

The sensitivity analysis prescnted above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one

anotlr as some of the assuniptions may be corrclated.

Furth in ing the above analysis, Ui present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting

period, which is the same as that applicd in calculating the defined bencfit obligation liability ized in the

of financial position.

) The defincd benefit obligation shall mature after year end 31 Macch 2021 as follows:

Year ending 31 March Defined benefit obligation |Year ending 31 March |Defined benelit
obligation

2022 349 2021 298
2023 L1 (2022 0.61
2024 0.83 |2023 Loo
2025 1.82 |2024 0.67
2020 1.19 (2025 LG4
Therealler 14.63 | Thereafler 12,53

k) Compensated absence

The Group provides for compensated absences (o its ciployees. The employees can carry-forward a portion of the wutilized accnied compensated absences and utilise it in fulure service periods or receive cash

compensation on termination of cmployiient. Since the compensated abserces do not fall duc wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service and are also not

cxpected to be utilized wholly within twelve months after the ead of such period, tli benefit is classificd as a long-term ciployee benefit. The Group records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in

which the employce reders the services that increase this entitlcent,

The scheme s unfunded and liability for the same is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation, A provision of INR 14,08 Million (31 March 2020: INR 12.43 Million . 31 March 2019: INR 9.39 Million) for {he years
Tave been made on the basis of actuarial valuation at the year end and debited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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39. Segment information

A. General information:
An operating scgnient is o component of the Group that engages in business activities from whicl it may eamn reverues
Company's other components, and for which discrele financial information is available,

and incur expenses. incliding revenues and expenses that relae to trinsactions with any of the

The results of the Group are reviewed regularly by the Company's Board of Dircclors (Chicf Operating dccision nker) to assess the performance of the Group and to niake decisions accordingly. The Group is cngaged

ing of and services and therefore a single business segment, accordingly, disclosurc requirement of Ind AS 108, “Operating Segmenls™ are not required to be given

in the business of
for business segment,

B. Geographical Segment:
The Group sells its products (o various mamifacturers within (he country and overseas. Considering the size and proportion of exports to local sales, the Group considers sales made within (he countiy and overseas as

wo of seguienl is based on tle geographical location of the customers,
Revenue from operations 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
India 2,680.96 2,762.97
QOutside India 1.500.79 1459.43
Total 418175 4,222,410
Non current segment asseis* Asat Asat Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 01 April 2019
India 2.046.05 2.042.20 1.918.97
Oulside fndia 3.20 2.94 1.59
Total 2,049.25 2,045.14 1,920,56

*non-currcit segment asscts arc other than financial instruments, deferred tax asscts and non current tax assets {nct).
C. information about major customers

Customers accounted for more than 10% of the revenucs:

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

A 6R4.69 853.11
B 456.94 634.35
C - 608.53
D - 424.61
E 461.30 -

* Customers name is not disclosed duc to confidentiatity

40. Pursuant fo share purchase agreement dated Oclober 23, 2020, e Holding Company, Syrma SGS Technology Linuted (formerly known s Synna Technology Private Limited) (Syrua). existing sharcholders of the

41, The Group has incurred Rescarch and Development (*R&D™) expendilure during the year. The details are as follows:
Particul: Year ended Year ended
artion ars 31 Mareh 2021 31 March 2020
Salary 2232 1948
Development charges (including material) 228 4.66
Total 24.60 24.14
42. Details of dues to micro, small and medium enterpriscs as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 to the cxtent information available with Group.

Holding Company, Tancon Electronics Private Limited, Sandecp Tandon and Veena Kumar Tandon crtered in lo an agreement where in Syrina agreed to purchase 20% siake in the Holding company from cxisting

sharcholders. The Holding Company and Syrma also decided to merger both the Companies and decide to file application with respective National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) for necessary

approvals ,

Subsequent o the year end, the Holding Contpany and Syrmia decided to withdraw erger application from NCLT duc to decision taken by both the parties for not to proceed with the proposed aicrger.
The Holding Company and the existing shareholders of the Holding Cotpany (Syrma SGS Technology Limited (formerly known as Syrma Technology Private Limited), Sanjiv Narayan, Jasbic Singh Gujra, Krishna

’s A t dated 16 S L

Kumar Pant and Raujit Singh Lonial) entered into Share Sale and Purchase and
subsidiary of Syrma SGS Technology Limited (formerly known as Syrma Technology Private Limited).

2021 whereby SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited has now become 100%

As at

As at

As at

Particulars
avticulars 31 March 2021

31 Blarch 2020

01 April 2019

The amounts remaining unpaid 1o micro, small and medium suppliers as at the end of the year:

-Principal 51.04 26.13 35.88;

-Inferest 2.1 417 234
5§3.55 30.30, 38.22

The amount of the payinenis made to micro, smatl and medium supplicrs beyond the appointed

dav during the year

-Principal 63.52 L13.67] 168.6-4

-Interest 2.58 - -

The amount of interes! duc and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have

been paid but beyond the appointed day during (he year) but without adding the interest under] 041 1.26 227

MSMED Act 2006

The amount of inferest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year 251 417 234

The amount of further intercst remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such

date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the smalt enterprisc for the purposc of]

disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

o, o
i
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43. Financial Instruments

) Financtalinstruments by category
The carrying value of financial instruments by categorics as at 31 March 2021 were as follows:

Financial assets/ liabilities| Financial assets at fair

Particulars Amortised cost at fair value through ) Total carrying value
o value through OCI

profit or loss
Assets:
Cash and cash equivaleals (7659 - - 171.59
Other batances with banks 72.05 - - 72.05
Investnenl in debentures or bonds 4.95 24.07 - 29.02
Tavestment in mutual fund - - 302.30
Investment in other -unquoted investiments . - 61.04
Loans 9.28 - 9.28
Trade receivables 765.39 - 763.39
Other finaucial assets 235 - 3.90
Total 1,025.61 388.96 - 1.414.57
Liabilities:
Trade payables 637.86 - - 63786
Borrowings - Long term 7.54 - - 7.54
Borrowings - Short term 326.44 326.44
Lease liabilities 50.27 - - 5027
Other financial liabilities 87.58 - - 87.58
Total 1,109.68 - - 1,109.68

The carrying value of financial inslruments by categories as at 31 March 2020 were as follows:

Financialassets7 iabilities
Particutars Amortised cost at fair value through
nroiit or joss

Financial assets at faiv

value through OCT Total carrying value

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 180.96 - - 180.96
Other balances with banks 61.25 - - 61.25
Investiment in debentures or bonds 4.95 18.07 - 23.02
Investment in mutuat fund - 23167 - 23167
Tnvestment in other ~unquoted investments - 4344 - 43.44
Loan 8.96 - - 8,96
Trade receivables 61376 - - 613.76
Other financia] assets 161 973 - t134
Total 873.49 30291 - 1,176.40
Liabilitics:

Trade payables 335.49 - - 33549
Borrowings - Long term 25.32 - . 25.32
Borrowings - Short term 19114 - - 19114
Lease Habilities 53.46 - - 3346
Otlier financial linhilitics HIO.19 - - 110.19
Tofat 915,59 - - 915

“The carrying value of financial instrunents by categorics as at 01 April 2019 were as follows:

Financial assets/ liabilities|
Particulars Amortised cost at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair

Total carrying value
value through OCT Yine

Assetst

Cush and cash equivalents 59.36 - - 59.36
Other balances with banks 3.36 - - 3.36
Investment in debentures or bonds 4.95 - - 495
[nvestment in mutuat fund - 223.73 - 223.73
Investient in other ~nnqutoted investaents - 42.14 - 42.14
Loans 7.61 - - 7.61
Trade receivables 829.50 - - 829.50
Other financial assets 56.75 1.52 - 5827
Total 961.53 267.3Y - 1,228.92
Liubilities:

Trade payables 631.52 - - 631.52
Borrowings - Long term 3699 - - 36.9%
Borrowings - Shorl term 479.42 479.42
Lease liabilities 24.83 - - 2483
Other tinancial liabititics 94.50 - - 94.50
Total 1,267.26 - - 1,267.26.

The manageument ussessed that the fair values of current financial ussets and liabitities sigaificantly approximate their carrying amounts largely, as the canying value approsinte to realisable value, Accordingly,
management has not disclosed fair values for financial instruments such as cash and cash equivalents, other balances with banks, trade receivables, other financial assels, trade payabtes, borrowings, fease obligation
and other tinancial liabitities and disclosed them in amortised cost

The fair vatue of non-current financial assets and financial liabilities are determined by discounting future cash Nows using current rates of instruments with similar terms and credit risk, The current rites wsed do ot
rellect signilicant changes from the discount rates used initiatly. Theretore, the carrying value of these instruments measurcd at amortised cost approximate their fair valie ingly has disclosed
investuent in debentures or bonds, loans, other financial assels, borcowings, lease obligation and other financial Jisbilities in amortised cost. Other financial assels includes derivative contracts entered to witigate
foreign currency risk which are measured at fair value basis mark to market valuations share by the bank,




ID) Fair Value Hicrarchy

Level | - Quoted prices (wadjusted) in active markets for identical assets ot liabilitics.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are abservable for the asset or Liability, either directly (i.. as prices) or indivectly (i.¢. derived from priees).
Level 3 - Inpuls for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (wobservable inputs).

There are no transfer between Level |, Level 2 and Levet 3.

The following table presents fair value hicrarchy of assels and liabililies measured at fair valuc on a recurring basis as at 31 March 2021:

Asat Fair value measurement as nt end of the reporting period nsing
Particulars

March 31, 2021 Level t Level2 Level 3
Financial assets
Investient in debentures or bonds 24.07 - 24.07 -
Tnvestments in mutual fund 302,30 302.30 - -
[nvestent in other wmvestments - unquoted 61.04 61.04 - -
Der ivuliwe. conlracts entered to mitigate foreign 155 _ 155 .
currency risk
Financi;
Borrowing: 7.54 . 7.54 -
Borcowings - S i 326.44 - 32644 -
Tutal 722.94 363.34 359,60 -

The foltowing table presents fair value hicrarchy of assets and liabilitics measured at fir value on & recwering basis as at 31 March 2020:

Particulurs As at Fair value measurement as at end of {he reporting period using

‘ - 31 Murch 2024 Level { Level 2 ELevel3
Financial assely
Investient in debentures or bouds 18.07 - 18.07 -
Tnvestments in mutuat fuxl 23167 231.67 -
Envestment in other investments - wiuoted 43.44 43.449 - -
Derivative contracts entered to mitigate forcign 073 . o7 A
currency risk
Financiat linbilitics
Borrowings - Long term 25.32 - 2532 -
Borrowings - Short teum 19114 - 19114 -
Total 519.37 275.11 24426 -

“The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and Habilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as at 01 April 2019:

Fair value measurement as at end of the reporting period using

Particulars As at 01 April 2019
Level ] Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Investments in nutual fusd 22373 22373 - -
Investment in other investments - unquoted 42.14 42.14 - -
Dcrivuliv-.t contracts enlered to mitigate foreign 152 . 152 R
cwrrency risk
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - Long term 36.99 - 36.99 -
Botrowings - Shert tenm 479.42 - 47942 -
Total T43.80 265.87 517.93 -
Measurement of fair values
Valuation lechnigues mnl signiticant unobservable mputs
The lojlowing table show the valuation technique used in measuring level 2 and levet 3 fair values for financial i in the fidated financial as well as the sigmificant unobservable inpul usal,
Type Valuatiun technique Significant unobservable Inter-relationship between
inputs significant unubservable
inputs and fair vaiue
measugeinent
Investment in debentures or bonds The fair value is estimated considering current or recent quolud prices for idenlical secunlios | Not applicable Not applicable
in aparket that are not active.
Derivative contracts entered to mitigate forcign The fair value is caleulated based on mark to market continuation received from lender bank | Not applicable Not appticable
currency risk at the period end which is being treated as fevel 2
Other financial liabilities* Discounted cash flows: the valuation model considers the present value ol expected payment | Not applicable Not applicable
discotnted using a risk- adjusted discount rate.

*Other finaucial Yability includes secured bank foans and redeemable preference share

| Gurugra)
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Financial Risk Factors

The Group's activitics expose it to & variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk. The Group's primary focus is to foresee risk and seck to minimize potential adverse effects on its financiol

performance, “The Group's board of dircetors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Graup's risk management framework. The board of dircctors have muthorised senior management to

isk und Jiqui

establish the processes, who eusures that exveutive management coulrols risks through the mechanism of properly defined framework. *The Group's risk management policies are establistied to identify and analyse the
risks faced by the Group, to st appropriate risks kimits and controls, to monilor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policics are reviewed regularly to refleet changes in markel conditions and the Group's
aclivities.

(i) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair valuc or future cash flow of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, Such changes in the values of finaucial instrunents may result from clunges in
foreign currency exchauge rates, interest rates, credit, Hquidity and other market changes. The Group's exposure to market risk is primarily on account of foreign currency exchange rate risk.

Foreign currency exchange rate risk
The Group's major operations are in India and are in INR and therefore, the Group is not exposed to significant foreign currency risk, The Group evaluates the exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency

transactions and the Group lottows established risk management policies which are approved by the senior management and the Board, including the nse of derivatives to mitigate loreign currency risk

The Group's fareign cusrency exposure o account of forcign eurrency denominated receivables and payables not hedged as at year ond are:

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 Murch 2020 As ut 01 April 2019

Particutars Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount

(FC) (Rupees} (FC) (Rupees) {(FC) (Rupees)
Trade receivable
Euro 0.31 2670 109 90.42 1.17 88.79
US Dollar 2.76 202352 2.00 151.02 .63 11046
Bank Balance
EURO 0.43 3735 0.07 3.59 0.07 5.36
US Dollar 0.39 28.33 049 37.00 046 30.88
Payubles including capital creditors
Euro 0.58 50.30 0.32 206.99 027 2260
US Dollar 270 198.56 2,65 199.75 4.18 29522
Japanese Yen 12.89 8.35 9.5 2752 310 21.78
Great Britain Pound (GBP) 0.00 0.49 0.00 0.14 0.00 6.16
Swiss Fraue (CHF) 0.01 1.08 0.01 0.66 0.ho 013
Packing Credit
US Dollar 346 254.07 042 31.82 Lt 78.59
Term Loan®
US Dollar 021 1532 049 3725 078 55.07
Working Capital Loan*
US Dollar - - 145 109.32 - -

*The Group has entered into derivative contracts to mitigate foreign currency risk against the variability in foreign exchange and interest rates on its foreign currency loans outstanding as at respective year cads, As at
31 March 2021, 31 March 2020 and 3§ March 2019, the company had fair values of derivative contracts of INR 1.55 Million, INR 9.73 Million and INR 1.52 Million respectively. Mark-to-market losv/gain on the
derivative contracts have been recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss in respective years. The fuir values of derivative contracts are based on mark-to-market valuations as provided by the counterparty bank
quots.




Forex sensitivity analysis:

The folfowing table details the Group's sensitivity to a 1% increase and decrease in the INR agaiust relevant foreign currencies. 19 is the rate wsed in order to determme the sensitivity analysis considering the past
trends and expectations of the managenent for changes in e foreign surrency exchange rate. The sensitivity analysis includes the ing forcign currency d ! monctary items and adjust their transaction
at the period/year end for 1% change in foreign currency rates. A posilive number below indicates a increase in profit or equily where (he INR strengthens 1% against the relevant currency. For a 1% weakening of the
INR against the relevant currency, tere would be a comparabl imprct on the profit or equity balanic below would be negative. This analysis 1s perforawd on foreign surrency devominatod manetary finmeia

and finaneial liabifities owtstanding as at the period/year end. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular inlerest rates, remain constant and ignores any mpact of torecast sales and purchases.

Particulars Sensitivity Analvsis — et on PAT

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020 As at 0F April 2019
INR Seasitivily (Increase) 1%
- Trade Receivable 229 241 1.99
- Bank Balance 0.66 043 0.36
-Payable including capital creditors {2.59) (2.55) (3.39)
-Pucking Credit (2.59); (0.32) (0.79)
Strengt ing Total (2.18) (0.03) (1.83)
ENR Seasitivity (Decrease) 1%
- Trade Receivable (2.29), (24t) (1.99)
- Bank Balance (0.66)| (0.43), (0.36)
-Payable including capital creditors 259 2.55 339
-Packing Credit 2.34 0.32 071
Weakening Total 2.18 0.03 1.83
Particulars Sensitivity Analysis Twipact on Other Equity ( net of tax)

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020 As nt 011 April 2049
INR Sensitivity (Increase) 1%
- Receivable 172 1.8t 149
- Bank 0.4% 0.32 027
-Payable (1.94) (1.91) (2.34)
-Packing Credit (1.90) (0.24), (0.59)
Strengthening Total (1.63) (0.02) .37
INR Seusitivity (Decrease) 19
- Receivable (1L.72) (1.81) (1.49)
- Bauk (0.49) (.32) (©.27)
-Payable 1.94 1.91 2.54
-Packing Credit 190 0.24 0.39
We g Totul 1.63 0.02 1.37

Interest rate Risk
The Group adopts a policy of ensuring that all its interest rale risk exposure is at a fixed rate. This is achieved by entering into fixed-rate instraments with banks ensuring that (here are no variability in cash flows

attributable to inlerest rate risk.
(i) Credit risk

Credit sisk is the risk of financial loss arising from counterparty failure to repay or service debt according to the terms and obligations. Credit risk of both, e direct risk of defizull and the risk
of deterioration of ereditworthiness as well as concentration of risks. Credit sk is controlled by analysing credit limils and creditworthiness of custoners on a continuous basis to whom the credit has been granted

after obtaining necessary approvals for eredit.

The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the Balance Sheet:

Purticulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020 As at 01 Aprit 2019

Cash and cash equivalents 171.59 180.96 59.36
Other balances with banks 72.05 61.25 336
Investmient in debentures or bonds 29.02 23.02 4.95
Tnvestment in mutual find 302.30 231,67 22373
Investment in other -unquoted investments 61.04 4344 42.14
Loans 9.28 8.96 7.61
Trade reccivables 765.39 615.76 829.50
Other financial assets 3.90 t1.34 38.27

Credit risk on cash and cash equivateats and other balances with bauks is limited as the Group generally invests in deposits with banks wilh high credit ratings assigred by domestic credit rating agencics. Credi risk
on investments in mulual funds, bonds and other investments is Jlimited as the growp gencrally invests afler reviewing the rating provided by credit agencies. The credit risk on loans is also Timited as majorty amounts
are none other than seeurity deposits provided against factory premises obtained on leases. Other finaneial assets are *Derivative conlracts catered o mitigate forcign cwrency risk"entered with bauks with kigh eredit
ratings assigned by domestic credit rating agencies. The maximun exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily rom Irade receivables. The Growp monitor the cconomic environment in which it

operates.

le
expeeted erdit losses (o be measured through a toss allowanee, The Group assesses at each date of statements of financial position whether a fnancial asset or « group of al nssets is impaired,
adjusted for forward-looking informiation specially for sigificant

Trade rece

Ind AS requirs
“The Group recoguises fifetime cxpectod losses for alf trade receivables. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and
changes in the expected performance and behaviour of the customers, including changes in payment status of the customers in the group for which expected credit loss model s been applicd and expected significant
adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected to a cause a signiticant ehange to the customers ability to make payments. For all other financi sets, expectod credit losses are
meastred at an amount equal to the 12 months expected credit losses or at ms amount equal o the Tife time expected credit fosses il the credit nsk on the lnancial asset his

nereased significantly since initial

recognition.
The Grous hus tised a practical expedient by computing the expecled eredit loss allowanee for trade receivables based on a provision matrix considering (he customer profile. The provision matrix takes into account
di d. The ot credit risk is timiled due to the fact that the customer base is large and unrclated

historical credit loss expericnce. The Group’s exposure fo is
Basod on the industry practices aud the business environment in which the entity operates, management considers that the trade receivables are in default ( credit impaired) if payments are not received in the
considerable period of lime which is gencrally more than one year,

The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the days the receivables are due and the rates as given in the provision matrix.
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Following table provides agewise breakup of receivables (gross)

Ageing As at Asat Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 01 April 2019
Not Due 518.18 43.69 649.34
0-90 days past due 233.35 224.09 172.36
91-180 days pust due 18.78 57.30 22,40
181 - 270 days 8.85 3.00 3.04
271 - 365 days 1.30 252 1.53
748 1178 8.37
787.94 642,38 857.04
Expected credit Joss allowance #s per provision matrix
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 01 Aprit 2019
Not Due 10.05 5.85 181
0-90 days past due 440 3.24 4.37
91-180 days past due 0.4 4.68 1.84
L8E - 270 days 0.0% .20 0.62
271 - 365 days 0.39 0.87 0.53
More than 1 year 748 1178 8.37
22.55 26.62 27.54
Foltowing tabfe provides ngewise breakup of receivables (net)
Agelng As at As at Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 1 April 2019
Nol Duc 508.13 337.84 637.53
0-90 days past due 228.95 22085 167.99
91-180 days past due 18.64 52.62 20.57
181 - 270 days 8.76 2.81 241
271 - 365 days 0.91 164 1.00
More than 1 year - - -
Total 765.39 615.76 829.50
Movement in Expected credit loss
. As at Asat Asat
Porticulurs 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 01 April 2019
Balance at the beginning of the vear (26.62) 27.54) (27.54)
Expected cmditvluss nllo\.vmlcc on irade receivables 105 @97
reversed / (provided) during the year -
Bad debts written off 3.02 3.89 -
Balance at the end of the year (22.55) (26.62) (27.5H

(ili) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will eucounter dilliculty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilitics that are settled by delivering cash or another financial us
and stressed conditions, withoul incwrring unacceptable los:

managing liquidity is to cnsure, as far as possible, that it will have suflicient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are falten due, under both normal

risking damage (o the Group’s reputation.

The Group believes thal its liquidity position, including total cash and bank balances of INR 243.64 Million as at 31 Mareh 2021, INR 242.21 Mitlion as at 31 Murch 2020 and INR 62.71 Million as al 31 March
2019 anticipated fisture intermally gencrated funds from operations, and its fully available, revolving ndrawn credit facility v
However, it'a liquidity noads were to arise, the Group belioves it has uccss to (inancing arrangemments, value of wiencuntbered assots, which should enable it (0 meet its ongoing capital, aperatin

requiramants. “The Graup will continue to consider varjous borrowing or leasing options to maxintize liquidity and supplewent cash tequirements as necessary

“The Group's liquidity management process as monitored by managenient, includes the following:

- Day to day Ruding, managed by monitoring flure cash tlows (o ensure that requircments cag be met.
- Maintaining rofting lorecasts of the Group's liquidity position on the basis of expected cash flaws,

- Maittaining diversilied credit lines.

1 Financing arrangements

The Group hil access to the tollowing widrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

Particulars

As at
31 March 2021

As at

As at
01 April 2019

From banks - Carrent

33343

31 March 2020
470.23

18423

From banks - Non current

From athers - Current

e S

el. The Group's approach to

will enable il to meet its (ture known obligations in the ordinary course of busine




1. Maturities of financial liabilities

The (ollowing are the remaining contractual maluritics of financial liabilities at the reporting date, The amounts are gross and undiscomnted:

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial kabifities as at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2021 Contractunl cash flows Currying Amount

0-1 years 1-5 years More thun 5 years Total
Non derivative financial liabilities
Finangial liabifities - Total Borrowings 343.30 7.97 - 351.27 349.67
Lease Habilities 8.69 38.89 23.56 7h14 5027
Trade payables 637.86 - 637.86 637.86
Other financial libilities 71.88 - - 71.88 71.88
Total 1,061.73 46.86 23.56 1,132.15 1,100.68
As at 31 March 2020 Contractual cash fluws Carrying Amount

0-1 years 1-5 years Muore than §ycars Totat
Noa derivative financial liabilities
Finaneial linbilities - Total Borrowings 22145 26.91 - 248.36
Lease liabilities 832 3720 3394 7946
Trade payables 53549 - - 535.49
Orher financial tiabilities 83.08 - - 83.08 %3.08
Total 848.34 64.11 33.94 946.39 $15.59
Asar 01 April 2019 Contractual cash flows Carrying Amount

0-1 years 1-5 years More than S vears Tatal
Non deri cial linbilitics
Financial & 'otal Borrowings 505.19 4178 - 346.97 537.50
Lease liabilitics 4.17 18.85 1138 340 24.83
Trade payables 63152 - . 631.52 631,52
Other linancial liabilities 73.41 - - 7341 7341
Total 1,214.29 .63 11.38 1,286.30 1,267.26

Cupital management

For the purpose of he Group’s cupital management, capital includes issued equity share capital, share premisim and ali other equily reserves attributable to the equity hotders of the parent. The primary objective of the
management of the Group's eapital structure is to maintain an efficient mix of debt wl equily in oxder to achicve a low cost of capital, while taking into accouat (he desirability of retaining financial flexibility
pursuc business opportunities and adequate access to liquidity to mitigate the el¥ect of untoreseen events on cash flows,

“The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic coudlitions. To maintain or adjust the eapital sructure, the Company may relurn capital to shareholders, raise new

debl or issue new shares.

ital struclure

at respective vear ends are

As at Asat "
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 Murch 2020 As at OL April 2019
Total Debt 4967 24336 53750
Equily 3,33801 3,036.20 272429
Capital and net debt 3.687.68 329976 326179
Gearing ratio D% 7%] 16%%]
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SGS Tekniks Mnnufacturmg Prlvate Limited
Notes to lid for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts are in millions Indian rubees unless otherwise stated)

Note 44  Reconciliation between Previous GAAP and Ind AS
These are the Group’s first consolidated financial prepared in d with Ind AS.

The accounting policies set out in Note 2 have been applicd in preparing the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021, the comparative information presented in these Consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 and in the opening Ind AS bal-\ncc sheet at 01 April 2019 (the Group's date of transition). In preparing its opening Ind AS balance sheet, the Gronp has
adjusted the amounts reported previonsly in C lidated financial prepared in d with the accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended)
and other relevant provisions of the Act (previous GAAP or Indian GAAP).

IND AS 101 “First-time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards” (hereinafter referred to as Ind AS 101) atlows first time adopters certain mandatory exceptions and optional exemptions from the retrospective
application of certain IND AS, effective for 01 April 2019 opening balance sheet. In preparing these consolidated financial the Group has applied the below mentioned mandatory exceptions and

optional exemptions,

1. Exemptions applied:

1. Mandatory exceptions:

a) Estimates

On assessment of the estimates made under the previous GAAP Consolidated financial statements, the Group has concluded that there is no necessity to revise the estimates under Ind AS, as there is no objective
evidence of an error in those estimates. However, estimates that were required under Ind AS but not required under previous GAAP are made by the Group for the relevant reporting dates reflecting conditions

existing as at that date. Key estimates considered in preparation of financial statements that were not required under the previous GAAP are listed below:

- Fair valuation of financial instruments carried at FVTPL.
- Determination of the discounted value for financial instruments carried are amortised cost.
- Impairment of financial assets based on the expected credit loss model.

b) Classification and measurement of financial assets:
Ind AS 101 requires an cntity to assess classification of financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances existing as at the date of transition. Further, the standard permits measurement of financial assets
accounted at amortised cost based on facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition if retrospective application is impracticable. Accordingly, the Group has determined the classification of financial

assets based on facts and circumstances that exist on the date of transition, Measurement of financial assets accounted at amortised cost has been done retrospectively except where the same is impracticable.

¢} De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities
Ind AS 101 requires a first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the date of transition to Ind AS. However, Ind AS 101 allows a

first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition requirements in Ind AS 109 retrospectively from a datc of the entily’s choosing, provided that the information needed to apply Ind AS 109 to financial assets and
financial liabilitics derecognised as a result of past transactions was obtained at the time of initially accounting for those transactions. The Group has clected to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109
prospectively from the date of transition to Ind AS.

d) Non- Controlling Interests

Ind AS 110 requires that total comprehensive income should be attributed to the owners of the parent and the NCI even if this results in the NCI having a negative balance. Ind AS 101 requires this requirement to
be applied prospectively from the date of transition to Ind AS.

2. Optional Exemptions Availed
a) Property Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

As permitted by Ind AS 101, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying values under previous GAAP for all the items of property, plant and equipment and used that deemed cost
as at the date of transition. The same election has been made in respect of intangible assets as well.

b) Business combinations
Ind AS 101 provides the option to apply Ind AS 103 prospectively from the transition date or from a specific date prior to the transition date. This provides relief from full retrospective

application that would require restatement of all business combinations prior to the transition date.
The Group elected to apply Ind AS 103 prospectively to business combinations oceurring after its transition date. Business combinations occurring prior to the transition date have not been

restated.
For business combinations prior to 1 April 2619, which have not been restated as per Ind AS 103, goodwill represents amount recognised in previous GAAP subject to specific adjustments

as prescribed under Ind AS 101

¢) Prosnective aoolication of Tnd AS 21
Ind AS 101 allows a first-time adopter not to apply Ind AS 21 Effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates retrospectively for business combinations that occurred before the date of

transition to Ind AS. In such cases, where the entity does not apply Ind AS 21 retrospectively to fair value adjustments and goodwill, the entity treats them as assets and liabilities of the

acquirer entity and not as the acquiree

I Transition to Ind AS - Reconciliations

An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Group's financial position, financial performance and cash flows is set ot in the following tables and notes.

{i) Reconciliation of material items of Balance sheet as at 01 April 2019 (Transition Date) and as at 31 March 2020
Particulars As at 31 March 2020 As at'l April 2019
As reported under previous GAAP 3,050.42 2,711.19
Adjustments:
Fair valuation of investments 23.87 22.64
Gain/(Loss) on sale of investments restated (7.82) -
Depreciation on Right of use asset (5.29) -
Interest cost on lease liabilities (4.14) -
Fair valuation of security deposits 0.15) (0.15)
Interest income on financial asset measured at amortised cost 0.20 -
Initial recognition of financiat liability (Preference shares adjustment) 0.13 0.13
Interest cost on financial liability (Preference shares) (0.09) -
Lease expenses 470 -
Loss allowance (26.62) (27.54)
Tax adjustments 2.98 0.73
Other equity under Ind AS 3,038.19 2,707.00




(i) Reconciliation of Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2020

Particulars For the year ended
31 March 2020
Net Income under previous GAAP 361.01
Acturial gain/loss 2.24
Depreciation on Right of use asset (5.29)
Interest cost on lease liabilities (4.14)
Lease expenses 4.70
Interest income on financial asset measured at amortised cost 0.20
Fair valuation of investments 123
Gain/(Loss) on sale of investments restated (7.82)
Interest expense on financial liability (Preference shares) (1.35)
Loss allowance 0.92
Deferred tax adjustments 1.68
Profit for the year under Ind AS 353.38
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) (1.78)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year under Ind AS 351.60
(i) Adjustments to Statement of Cash Flows
Parti For the year ended 31 March 2020
articulars
IGAAP Ind AS adjustments Ind AS
Net cash flow from operating activitics 679.55 1.87 677.68
Net cash flow from investing activities (181.15) 2.55) (178.60)
Net cash flow from finaneing activities (375.58) 0.68 (376.26)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 122.82 {0.90) 122.82
Effect of exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents held in foreign
CUITency. (1.22) - (1.22)
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 April 2019 59.36 - 59.36
Closing cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2020 180.96 {0.00) 180.96

iv)

Notes to first time adoption

a. Note on Fair value of Investment
For the purpose of fair value measurement, the Group has determined classes of asscts and liabilities on the basis of their nature, characteristics and risks of asset or liability and the level
of the fair value hicrarchy as explained in notc 43. These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest income, are recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss.
Under the previous GAAP, investments in debentures or bonds and mutual funds were classified as long-term i or current i based on the intended holding period and
. Long-term i were carried at cost less provision for other than temporary decline in the value of such investments. Current investments were carried at lower of cost
and fair value. Under Ind AS, these investments are required to be measured at fair value . The resulting fair value changes of these investments have been recognised in retained earnings
as at the date of transition and subsequently in the profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2020. This increased the retained earnings by INR 23.87 Million as at 31 March 2020 (01
April 2019 - INR 22.64 Million).

b. Leases
Under Ind AS, where the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases, straight
lining of lease is not required. The same was required under AS-19. The Group has initially recognised security deposit paid to the lessor at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost
as per Ind AS 109.
Under previous GAAP, lessce classified a lease as an operating or a finance lease based on whether or not the lease transferred substantially all risk and rewards incident to the ownership
of an asset, Operating lease were expensed in the statement of profit and loss. Under Ind AS 116, all arrangement that fall under the definition of lease except those for which short-term
lease exemption or low value exemption is applied, the Group has recognised a right-of-use assets and a lease liability on the lease commencement date. Right-of-use assets is amortised

over the lease term on a straight ling basis and lease liability is measured at amortised cost at the present value of future lease payments.

The impact arising from the change is as follows:

Particulars For the period ended
31 March 2020
Rent 4.70
Interest 4.14)
Depreciation (5.29
Adjustment before income tax - Profit / (loss) 4.73)
Statement of Assets and Liabilities As at 01 April 2020 As at 01 April 2019
Assels: Right-of-use asset 55.86 23.25
Liabilities: Lease liabilities 53.46 24.83

¢ Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the Trade receivables or any contractual right

to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115.

d Deferred Tax
Indian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable profits and accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12
requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance
sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required under Indian GAAP. In
addition, the various transitional adjustments lead to temporary differences. Deferred tax adjustments are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in retained earnings

or a separate component of equity.

¢ Re-Classifications
The Group has done the following reclassifications as per the requirements of Ind-AS :
i) Assets / liabilities which do not meet the definition of financial asset / financial liability have been reclassified to other asset / liability.
ii) Remeasurement gain/loss on long term employee defined benefit plans are re-classified from statement of profit and loss to OCL

fR ements of post-employ benefit obligations
Under Ind AS, remeasurements i.¢. actuarial gains and losses and the retum on plan assets, excluding amounts included in the net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are
d in other comp income instead of profit or loss. Under the previous GAAP, these remeasurements were forming part of the profit or loss for the year. As a result of this

change, the profit for the year ended 31 March 2020 decreased by INR 2.24 Million.

g Retained earnings
Retained earnings as at 01 April 2019 has been adjusted conscquent to the above Ind AS transition adjustments.

h Other comprehensive income
Under Ind AS, all items of income and expense recognised in a period should be included in profit or loss for the period, unless a standard requires or permits otherwise. Items of income
and expense that are not recognised in profit or loss but are shown in the statement of profit and loss as “other comprehensive income’ includes remeasurements of defined bencfit plans

and tax thereon. The concept of other comprehensive income did/does not exist under previous GAAP.

i Other adjustments
Other adjustments inchudes adjustment in respect of fair valuation of security deposit and financiat liability.
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SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Allamounts ave In nillions Indian rupees unless othernise stated)

45,

Additional information under general lor the jon of inancial statements of Schedule HI to the Companies Act, 2013 as at 31 March 2021 and 31 Marsh 2020.
. Net Assots ke, totul assets minus total Share in profit or toss Share in other comprehensive income|  Share in total conpretiensive inconte
Name of eafity Liabilities
As % of As % of
o . . ) e
As. % of Anwunt as at 31 As A of Amawnt for the consolidated other Antount for the consolidated total Amaunt for the
consalidated net Mareh 2021 consolidated year ended o rehensive year ended 3 year ended
assets Harch profit 31 March 2021 | SOmPrehens 31 March 2021 31 March 2021
fncome
Parents
8GS Tekniks Menufacturing Private Limiled. 100.019] 3.338.19 97.59% 27199 90.10% {D.46)] 97.60%| 271.53
SGS Infosystems Privale Limited 2.95%)| 98.55 0.01%| 0.02 - 0.01% 0.02
Fareign sul ¥
$GS Solutions GmbH 0.40%0 13.36 3.80% 10.59 - X807 10.59
Nort-controlling inferests 0.16%) 338 129 (3.60) - - 129%) (3,60
Tot elintigations 3.52% (1737) 011 035, 990% (0.05) 0.02% W13
Total 100.00% 3,338.01 100.00% 27872 TH.H% {0.51)] 100.00% 27R.24
Net Assets ke, total assets minus total Share in profit or loss Share i other com prehiensive incoe|  Share in tatal com preliensive income
Name of entity Habilities
T
As % of As % of Awmount for the As % of Amount for the As % of Amount for the
" Amount as at 31 . consolidated other] consolidated total
consolidated net March2020 | consolidated net | year ended comprchensive year ended comprehensive year ended
assets © assets 31 March 2020 P 31 Marcl 2020 P 31 March 2020
income uconte
Parents
SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Eimited, 100.34% 3,066.66 99.36% 3L 94.40% Q.68 99.38% 34943
Tudian subsidiary
SGS Info Private Limited 322% 9853 0065 022) g B -0.06% (022)
Foreign subsidiary
SGS Solutions Gmbt [ 0.09%)| 2.82 0.60%!| 2.1 - - 0.60%5) 211
Nou-controlling interests 0.06% 188 0.20%) (0.72% - - -0.20%. {0.72)]
Total cli -3.71%)| {113.69) 0.30%] 110 5.60% (0.10; 0.28% L0O
Total 100.00% 3,056,20 100.00% 333.38 1H.00% (1.78) 140.00% 35160




SGS Tekniks Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts are in millions Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

46. The Holding Company established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing
regulation under sections 92-92F of the Income-Tax Act, 1961. Since the law requires existence of such information and documentation to be
contemporaneous in nature, the Holding Company continuously updates its documentation for the international transactions entered into with the
associated enterprises during the financial year and expects such records to be in existence latest by the due date as required under law. The
Management is of the opinion that its international transactions are at arm’s length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the
Consolidated financial statements, particularly on the amount of income tax expense and that of provision for taxation.

47. Disclosure on Specified Bank Notes (SBN):

The disclosures regarding holdings as well as dealings in specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not
been made in these Consolidated financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March 2021.

48, In view of pandemic relating to COVID -19, the Group has considered internal and external information and has performed an analysis based on
current estimates while assessing the provision towards employee benefits and recoverability of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
goodwill, investments, trade receivables, and other financial assets, for any possible impact on the Consolidated Financial statements. The Group has
also assessed the impact of this whole situation on, profitability, liquidity position, internal financial reporting and control etc. and is of the view that
based on its present assessment this whole matter does not materially impact these consolidated financial statements. However, the actual impact of
COVID'19 on these consolidated financial results may differ from that estimated due to unforeseen circumstances and the Group will continue to

closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

49. The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code”) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential
assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been
notified. The Holding Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code

becomes effective.
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